RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS
SKAGIT TRANSIT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Wednesday July 21, 2021

The Skagit Transit Board of Directors met in regular session via teleconference. Chair Boudreau called the meeting to order at
1:00 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, roll call, and introductions.

Members Present

Members Present via Teleconference

Peter Browning, Skagit County Commissioner

Ron Wesen, Skagit County Commissioner

Lisa Janicki, Skagit County Commissioner (Vice Chair)

Jill Boudreau, City of Mount Vernon, Mayor (Chair)

Steve Sexton, City of Burlington, Mayor

Laurie Gere, City of Anacortes, Mayor

Julia Johnson, City of Sedro Woolley, Mayor

Chris Jones, Community Advisory Committee Vice Chair (non-
voting member)

Staff Present

Dale O’Brien, Executive Director

Arden Flores, Manager of Finance & Administration
Whitney Davis, Clerk to the Board

Staff Present via Teleconference:

Greg Latham, Maintenance Manager

Joe Macdonald, Safety and Training Manager
Mark Kennedy, Operations Manager

Brad Windler, Planning and Outreach Supervisor

Members of Public via Teleconference:
Brandon Stone

Members Absent: Providing Legal Counsel:
Mark Hulst, City of Mount Vernon, Councilmember None
Chris Loving, City of Burlington, Councilmember
Marge Root, Labor Representative (non-voting member)
1 Public Comment:
None
2 Consent / Action Items:
a) Approval of June Meeting Minutes
b) Approval of Claims and Payroll
June Payroll Direct Deposit and Checks #16592 — 16600 .........ccoevviiiioreeeieeeeeeeeee e $760,999
June Direct Federal Withholding transfer........ooviiiie e $154,083
June Claims Checks and ACH H4A0815 — 40063 .......ooooee oot $295,788

Mr. Sexton moved to approve all Consent / Action items. Ms. Gere seconded the motion. The motion passed

unanimously.

3 Full Discussion/Action Items:

a) Monthly Budget Update Report for June

Mr. Flores read the report as presented in the agenda packet. Items of note include Skagit Transit received
$1,306,522 in sales tax in the month of June. Skagit Transit also received $86,320 in Federal and State Operating
grants. Capital expenditures included security camera upgrades and the MOA-2 Design and Construction
Management costs. The reserve account balance is $10,931,474.

Mr. Wesen inquired if the Federal Stimulus money Skagit Transit has received is included in the reserve account
balance. Mr. Flores explained that staff is getting ready to submit for reimbursement of $3.7 million from part two
of the CARES Act funding. Mr. Flores stated part one of the funding was broken out into revenues and that will



continue next month after submitting for reimbursement. Mr. Wesen noted that revenues for 2021 will be much
higher due to the reimbursements and figures will be skewed.

Mr. Sexton noted that the City budgets 16% of annual operating expenses for operational reserves and noted that
Skagit Transit’s current operational reserves are currently at 76%. Mr. Sexton noted the increased sales tax revenues
and stimulus checks that were distributed will level out and inflation will take effect — all of which will have an
impact on the budget.

Mr. Browning moved to approve the June Monthly Budget Update. Ms. Johnson seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously.

b) Approve Resolution 2021-04 Authorizing the Surplus of Vehicles and Vehicle Parts

Mr. Latham read the report as presented in the agenda packet. Items of note include 15 Vanpool vans, five staff
vehicles and one Fixed Route coach that have met their useful life benchmark and are now surplus vehicles.
Additionally, staff has identified excess parts inventory that is now obsolete and can no longer be used.

Mr. Latham stated staff is requesting Board approval to surplus the vehicles, and vehicle parts by means of
open or sealed bid auction.

Ms. Janicki inquired if this was due to a reduction of the Vanpool fleet. Mr. Latham explained that in addition to
the Vanpool vans, five staff vehicles and one Fixed Route coach have all met their useful life benchmark per
WSDOT standards. Mr. Latham stated the Vanpool vehicles that are now surplus sat for over a year after COVID
reduced the number of groups commuting. Staff reached out to Vanpool commuters to find out if they planned
on resuming as the state prepared to reopen and determined it was best to reduce the size of the fleet rather
than keep vans that met their useful life benchmark and did not have a group wanting to use them.

Mr. Wesen inquired if the chip shortage could potentially cause a delay when staff is ready to purchase
additional vehicles. Mr. Latham stated staff is not planning on expanding the Vanpool fleet any time soon. Mr.
Sexton inquired if an analysis has been done on the return of these surplus vehicles. Mr. Latham stated the
market is pretty impressive right now.

Ms. Janicki moved to approve Resolution 2021-04 Authorizing the Surplus of Vehicles and Vehicle Parts. Mr.
Browning seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

c) Award Construction Contract for the Sedro Woolley Food Bank Pullout Project

Mr. O’Brien read the report as presented in the agenda packet. Skagit Transit posted an invitation to bid the
construction of the Sedro Woolley Food Bank Pullout on June 4" and June 8™. Bids were opened on July 8. The
project has an estimated construction cost range of $90,000 to $105,000.

Mr. O’Brien stated staff received three bids which were opened and read aloud. Staff determined Bayshore
Construction Company LLC to be the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder and is requesting Board approval to

award them Construction Contract #21-007-F. Mr. O’Brien noted this project is 80% grant funded.

Ms. Johnson moved to Award the Construction Contract for the Sedro Woolley Food Bank Pullout Project. Ms. Janicki
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

d) Award Construction Contract for the Sedro Woolley Park and Ride Restroom Project

Mr. O’Brien read the report as presented in the agenda packet. Skagit Transit posted an invitation to bid the
construction of the Sedro Woolley Park and Ride Restroom Project on June 4™ and June 8™. Bids were opened on
July 8™. The project has an estimated construction cost range of $145,000 to $151,700.

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes July 21, 2021



Mr. O’Brien stated staff received one bid which was opened and read aloud. Staff determined Talakai Construction
Company LLC to be the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder and is requesting Board approval to award them
Construction Contract #21-009-P.

Ms. Johnson moved to Award the Construction Contract for the Sedro Woolley Park and Ride Restroom Project. Ms.
Gere seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

e) Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan

Mr. Macdonald read the report as presented in the agenda packet. Mr. Macdonald noted staff reviewed the plan,
updated staffing information, added a bus stop best practices section and the SDS training module. Staff is
requesting the Board review the updated version of the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan in order to vote on
approval in August 2021. Mr. Macdonald stated there is no budget impact and staff already has all the processes in
place.

f)  Community Advisory Committee By-Law Revision

Mr. Windler read the report as presented in the agenda packet. The revisions would allow committee members to
take a temporary leave of absence if needed and allow committee members to remove an officer for any reason if
needed. The amended by-laws were sent showing the requested approvals.

Ms. Janicki noted the only updates were to item number four and the addition of items five and six of the CAC By-
Laws.

Ms. Janicki moved to approve the Committee Advisory Committee By-Law Revisions. Ms. Gere seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

Transit Development Plan

Mr. Windler noted the annual update of the Transit Development Plan (TDP) informational item is included for the
Board’s review. This is also opening a 30-day public comment period which will be reviewed at the August Board

meeting during a public hearing. If so approved, the TDP will then be submitted to the state by September 1, 2021.

Mr. Windler noted staff added a new section on page 13 regarding levels of service and types of Fixed Route service
that operate in different parts of the County.

Community Advisory Committee Report

Mr. Jones stated that Ms. Jones sends her regrets that she is not able to attend the meeting and welcomed any
guestions the Board may have regarding the included Community Advisory Committee (CAC) report.

Ms. Boudreau inquired if Mr. Jones had any feedback from the CAC meeting regarding Board meetings continuing
with Zoom availability. Mr. Jones stated that the CAC is hoping the Zoom availability remained allowing more access
for the public to be able to participate.

Executive Directors Report

Mr. O’Brien shared construction on the MOA-2 facility has begun and Legends Brands has reduced the amount of
storage space they are currently using and will be out of the building by mid-August.

Mr. O’Brien stated Skagit Transit is still under Federal requirement to wear masks at all times while on the bus or in

Transit hubs, which includes Skagit Station through September. Mr. O’Brien stated drivers and staff have done a
great job complying with this requirement.

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes July 21, 2021



Mr. O’Brien requested feedback from the Board regarding moving toward in-person meetings. Ms. Boudreau stated
the Board will need to follow the OPMA and any additional laws and shared her support for hybrid meeting options.
Ms. Gere expressed her support of the hybrid meetings and shared Anacortes positive experience with hybrid
meetings.

Mr. O’Brien confirmed meetings could be accommodated at Skagit Station, however masks would be required and
members would have to comply with state and federal regulations. Mr. Sexton stated masks are optional at
Burlington City Council Chambers.

Ms. Boudreau requested staff bring a recommendation to the Board in the August meeting. Ms. Janicki stated the
new reality for public meetings will be a hybrid format and expressed her desire to return to in-person meetings.
Ms. Janicki noted access to government has improved with hybrid options. Ms. Johnson expressed her support for
maintaining hybrid meetings as it also allows more attendance to multiple meetings. Mr. Wesen added his support
for hybrid meetings and shared concerns for having good technology to allow a good connection. Mr. Wesen stated
it serves the public by allowing easier access to meetings without having to drive to meetings.

Ms. Boudreau requested staff work with the City of Burlington to request use of the Council Chamber meeting space
and ensure that the technology capabilities will accommodate the needs for a hybrid meeting and additionally
discuss adjusting the meeting time. Ms. Boudreau clarified the August meeting will be held via Zoom and the Board
will vote to host a hybrid meeting for September. Mr. O’Brien thanked the Board for the direction.

Mayor Boudreau adjourned the meeting at 1:36 p.m.

Mayor Jill Boudreau, Chair Skagit Transit Board of Directors
Attest:

Whitney Davis, Clerk of Skagit Transit Board

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes July 21, 2021



	Wednesday July 21, 2021
	Staff Present
	Dale O’Brien, Executive Director
	Arden Flores, Manager of Finance & Administration
	Whitney Davis, Clerk to the Board
	Greg Latham, Maintenance Manager
	Jill Boudreau, City of Mount Vernon, Mayor (Chair)
	Members of Public via Teleconference:
	Providing Legal Counsel:
	Members Absent:
	None
	Mark Hulst, City of Mount Vernon, Councilmember 
	2     Consent / Action Items:

